
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – November 11, 2024   Page 1 of 4 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE City Hall 
 300 W. Main Street 
 Grand Prairie, 

Texas 
Amended Meeting Agenda  

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting  

Monday, November 11, 2024 5:30 PM City Hall - Briefing Room 

BRIEFING SESSION 

It is the intent of the Planning and Zoning Commission to be briefed by staff, and that all items on the 
agenda shall be available or open for discussion during the Briefing Session.  The Planning and  Zoning 
Commission may ask applicants and other interested parties for information or presentations.  All 
interested parties are invited to attend.  Briefings are taped. 

Call to Order 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning and Zoning Commission may conduct a closed session, if needed, in accordance with 
Texas Government Code Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney” to discuss legal matters 
pertaining to agenda items. Any final action will be taken during open session. 

Agenda Review 

6:30 PM Council Chambers 

REGULAR MEETING 

Call to Order 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes on any item not the agenda by 
completing and submitting a speaker card. 

PUBLIC HEARING CONSENT AGENDA 

Items listed on the Public Hearing Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be approved 
by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of the Public Hearing Consent Agenda 
items unless requested.  If discussion is desired on an item, it will be considered separately.  The 
Commission may ask questions of those present on an item from the Public Hearing Consent Agenda. 

1. Approval of Minutes of the October 28, 2024, P&Z meeting  



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – November 11, 2024   Page 2 of 4 

2. PLT-24-10-0038 - Final Plat - Constellation Rock Island (City Council District 1). Final Plat of 

Lot 1, Block 1, Constellation Rock Island Addition, creating one industrial lot on 16.832 acres. 

Multiple tracts out of John C. Read Survey, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned 

Planned Development (PD-450), within SH 161 Corridor Overlay, and approximate addresses 

of 3514-3560 Hardrock Rd and 4701 Hardrock Rd 

3. PLT-24-09-0036 - Preliminary Plat – Lakesong Phase 1. Preliminary Plat of Lakesong Phase 1 

to develop 429 residential lots, two commercial lots, 22 open space lots, and one lot for an 

amenity center on 172.03 acres. The property is generally south of Seeton Road, East of FM 

661, North of 287, and North of Kimble Road, Ellis County, Texas (Parcel IDs 190594, 190594 

& 294666) 

PUBLIC HEARING POSTPONEMENT, RECESS, CONTINUATIONS 

In accordance with Section 1.11.5.6 of the Unified Development Code (UDC) a public hearing for which 

notice has been given may be postponed by announcing the postponement at or after the time and place 

the hearing is scheduled to begin.  A public hearing may be recessed and continued any time after the 

hearing has commenced. Section 1.11.5.6.C of the UDC states if a postponement or continuance of a 

public hearing is to a specific date and time no later than 60 days from the first or most recent hearing, 

the announcement of the postponement of continuance at the public hearing in which the application has 

been postponed or continued by the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be sufficient notice and no 

additional notice is required. However, the Planning and Zoning Commission may direct staff to re-

notify postponed or continued applications for which public hearings have not yet commenced. 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

4. STP-24-09-0038 - Site Plan - Oakdale 2 Industrial (City Council District 1). Site Plan for an 

industrial warehouse on 29.17 acres. Tracts 1-5, 1.2, 12-13, 17-19, & 23, John Farrans Survey, 

Abstract No. 468, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial and 

Planned Development No. 221 (PD-221), and approximately addressed as 468 Oakdale Road 

5. STP-24-07-0031 - Site Plan – Polo Rd Retail Center (City Council District 6). Site Plan for a 

multi-tenant retail store on 1.525 acres. Lot 12, Block 5, Amesbury Estates Phase 2, City of 

Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-247, and addressed as 912 W Polo Rd 

PUBLIC HEARING  

Members of the public may address the Commission on items listed on the agenda under Public Hearing 

Items.  Persons wishing to address the Commission must first complete a request to speak card.  A 

person may also use the request to speak card to indicate his or her support or opposition to a case 

without speaking.  Cards may be picked up at the desk by the entrance to the City Council Chambers 

and may be deposited at the desk or given to a staff member.  Speaking time is generally limited to five 

minutes per speaker.  Per the by-laws of the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant and those 

favoring the request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes, including rebuttal, to present their arguments 

for the request.  Those in opposition to a request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes to present their 

arguments against the request. When a large group is present, it is encouraged that representatives be 

appointed to speak for the group so that redundant testimony is minimized.  Commissioners may have 

questions of those speaking at the public hearing. The time used to answer the Commission's questions 

2



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – November 11, 2024   Page 3 of 4 

will not be deducted from the allotted 30 minutes.  These rules may be temporarily suspended, in whole 

or in part, by a unanimous vote of the Commission. 

6. SUP-24-09-0043 - Specific Use Permit - Flint Academy (City Council District 2). Specific Use 

Permit for a Child Day Care Center. Lot 1R, Block 1, Oaks Baptist Church Addition, City of 

Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Planned Development No. 23 (PD-23), within the 

IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 801 E IH 20 

7. ZON-24-08-0022 - Zoning Change – 1419 E Marshall (City Council District 3). Zoning 

Change from Commercial (C) to Single Family-Five (SF-5) on 0.328 acres. Lot 1, Block C, 

Carbaugh Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) 

District, and addressed as 1419 E Marshall Dr 

8. ZON-24-09-0026 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - Lakesong Development (City Council 

District 6). Zone Change from Agriculture & Planned Developed-451 to Planned Development 

(PD) for mixed-use, urban residential, medium residential, estate residential, and open space 

uses on approximately 1,200 acres. The property is located generally south of Seeton Road, 

East of FM 661, North of 287, and North of Kimble Road, Ellis County, Texas (Parcel IDs 

294666, 294715, 297164, 303397) 

9. ZON-24-09-0025 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - Polo SFA Amendment (City Council 

District 6). PD Amendment (PD-410A) to allow 1,600 sq. ft. Single Family Attached units on 

2.909 acres. Tract 11.3, Thomas J. Tone Survey, Abstract No. 1460, City of Grand Prairie, 

Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-410A and approximated addresses of 4529-4554 Harmony Ct 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Hall is wheelchair accessible. If you plan to attend this public meeting and you have a 

disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8255 at least 24 hours in advance. 

Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs. 

MESSAGE OF RELIGIOUS WELCOME 

As many of you are aware, we customarily begin our meetings with an invocation. This prayer is 

intended for the benefit of the board members and is directed to them and not the audience. Those who 

deliver the invocation may reference their own religious faith as you might refer to yours when offering 

a prayer. We wish to emphasize, however, that members of all religious faiths are welcome, not only in 

these meetings, but in our community as well. The participation of all our citizens in the process of self-

government will help our fine city best serve the good people who live here. Employees and audience 

members are welcome to pray or not pray, and this choice will have no bearing on any vote made by the 

board. 

 

Certification 
 

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A, the Planning 

and Zoning Commission agenda was prepared and posted November 8, 2024. 
 

3



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – November 11, 2024   Page 4 of 4 

 

Monica Espinoza, Planning Secretary 

 

4



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/11/2024 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner 

TITLE: Approval of Minutes of the October 28, 2024, P&Z meeting  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – October 28, 2024   Page 1 of 7 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE City Hall 
 300 W. Main Street 

 Grand Prairie, 

Texas 

Meeting Minutes  

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting  

Monday, October 28, 2024 5:30 PM City Hall - Briefing Room 

BRIEFING SESSION 

Chairperson Smith called the Briefing meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 

Call to Order 

PRESENT 

Chairperson Cheryl Smith 

Vice-Chairperson John Fedorko 

Commissioner Michelle Madden 

Commissioner Frank Gonzalez 

Commissioner Christopher Okoli 

Commissioner Tai Jones-Chapman (entered meeting at 5:40 p.m.) 

Commissioner Angela Luckey-Vaughn 

Commissioner Janie Mendez-Adhikari 

Commissioner Victor Medina 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

There was no closed session. 

Agenda Review 

Staff briefed commissioners on cases. 

6:30 PM Council Chambers 

REGULAR MEETING 

Chairperson Smith called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Call to Order 

PRESENT 

Chairperson Cheryl Smith 

Vice-Chairperson John Fedorko 

Commissioner Michelle Madden 

Commissioner Frank Gonzalez 

Commissioner Christopher Okoli 

6

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – October 28, 2024   Page 2 of 7 

Commissioner Tai Jones-Chapman 

Commissioner Angela Luckey-Vaughn 

Commissioner Janie Mendez-Adhikari 

Commissioner Victor Medina 

 

Commissioner Fedorko led the Invocation. 

Commissioner Madden led the Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag and Texas Flag. 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

There were no citizen comments. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion made by Commissioner Fedorko, Seconded by Commissioner Madden to close the public 

hearing and approve item one. The motion carried unanimously. 

1. Approval of Minutes of the October 14, 2024, P&Z meeting  

Approves on Consent Agenda 

 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

2. STP-24-02-0011 – Site Plan – The Grove at Grand Prairie (City Council District 1).  Site Plan 

for a townhome development with 59 lots on 5.91 acres. Lots 1-70 and Grand Oaks Drive 

ROW, Green Oaks Estate Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Multi 

Family-One (MF-1) District, within the SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, generally located 

north of W. Marshall Drive and east of Robinson Road 

 Senior Planner Abdul Ghous presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. 

He stated this Site Plan provides a layout of a proposed townhome development with 59 

housing units that will be maintained by a homeowner’s association (HOA). The applicant is 

not requesting any variances.   

 The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following 

conditions: 

1. The site plan must meet all UDC and Appendix W requirements.   

2. The townhome units shall meet the required building setbacks. The site plan depicts 

some building footprints with a setback of 0 ft. when five ft. is required. 

3. The masonry screening wall shall be placed in a common lot to be owned and 

maintained by the HOA. 

4. All proposed private streets must conform to the same standards regulating the design 

and construction of public streets per Article 25.2.2.3. 

5. Private streets shall be maintained by the HOA.  

7

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – October 28, 2024   Page 3 of 7 

6. Screening fence cannot be located within the required visibility triangles and must be 

moved per UDC 23.10.10. The visibility triangle must meet the sufficient sight 

distance as required in Section 23.6.4. 

7. Parking must comply with the design criteria outlined in Section 6 of Article 10 of the 

UDC. 

8. Gated entry design and location must conform to the provisions listed in Article 

25.2.2.4. 

 

Josh Cart 2138 Welch St Houston Tx., stepped forward representing the case. Commissioner 

Madded asked the applicant if they would be able to meet the 5ft. setback. Mr. Cart stated yes. 

Commissioner Madden asked will these townhomes be for sale. Mr. Cart stated yes.  

Motion made by Commissioner Fedorko, Seconded by Commissioner Madden to close the 

public hearing and approve item two with conditions. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

3. STP-24-07-0033 - Site Plan - BJs Wholesale Club (City Council District 2). Site Plan for a 

104,759 sq. ft. membership-only retail store with eight fuel pumps on 12.28 acres. Lot 2, Block 

1, Mayfield Road Retail Addition 1, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-

456, within the SH 161 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 965 Mayfield Dr 

 Senior Planner Abdul Ghous presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. 

He stated the applicant seeks approval of a site plan for a BJ’s Wholesale Club at this location. 

The zoning of the site is Planned Development (PD-456) with the base zoning as General 

Retail (GR). The Retail Sales use and Gas Sales in conjunction with retail is permitted within 

PD-456. The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in 

the Unified Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site 

planning techniques.  The UDC identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments. 

Criteria include density and dimensional standards, and landscaping and screening 

requirements. The applicant is not requesting any variances. The Development Review 

Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

    

  Marc Lavole stepped forward representing the case.  

Motion made by Commissioner Madden, Seconded by Commissioner Chapman to close the 

public hearing and approve item three. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

4. STP-24-09-0037 - Site Plan - 2000 Pine St (City Council District 5). Site Plan to construct a 

new sanctuary for an existing church on 0.976 acres. Tracts 3 and 38, Joseph Graham Survey, 

Abstract No. 506, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Two Family Residential, 

and addressed as 2000 & 2002 Pine Street 

 Planner Brittany Musser presented the case report and gave power point presentation. She the 

applicant intends to construct a 4,500 sq. ft. sanctuary for an existing church on 0.976 acres. 

City Council must approve a Site Plan for any project involving an institutional or religious 

use located in a Two-Family Residential district that is expected to generate more than 50 

8

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – October 28, 2024   Page 4 of 7 

vehicle trips during any two-hour period. This site plan application meets the requirements 

above for City Council approval. The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that 

development meets requirements in the Unified Development Code (UDC), provides adequate 

circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques.  The UDC identifies criteria for 

evaluating proposed developments.  Criteria include density and dimensional standards, and 

landscaping and screening requirements. 

 The following variance is requested: 

1. Street Trees – Section 8.7.2 of Article 8 of the UDC requires street trees be planted a 

minimum of 25 linear feet apart and a maximum of 50 linear feet apart along collector 

streets. The proposal has street trees planted a maximum of 70 feet apart.   

The Development Review Committee (DRC) has no objections to the requested variances and 

recommends approval. Staff notes that the existing building on site, along with the required 

easement along the street frontage, make it challenging to meet the minimum requirement for 

street tree spacing. 

Motion made by Commissioner Adhikari, Seconded by Commissioner Gonzalez to close the 

public hearing and approve item four per staff recommendations. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING  

5. SUP-24-09-0038 - Specific Use Permit - Zoom Performance & Body Shop (City Council 

District 5). Specific Use Permit for Auto Body & Paint Shop at 2100 E Main Lot 2, Block 2, 

Business Center Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-60, and 

addressed as 2100 E Main St 

 Senior Planner Abdul Ghous presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. 

He stated the applicant intends to operate an Auto Body and Paint Shop facility at 2100 E 

Main St. The requested use requires a Specific Use Permit in the PD-60 district, which has a 

base zoning of Light Industrial. The purpose of the Specific Use Permit process is to identify 

those uses that might be appropriate within a zoning district, but due to either their location, 

functional or operational nature, could have a potentially negative impact on surrounding 

properties; and provide for a procedure whereby such uses might be permitted by further 

restricting or conditioning them to eliminate such probable negative consequences. The 

applicant is requesting a variance to reduce the minimum parking requirement from 11 to eight 

(8) spaces. Staff does not object to this request as all repairs will be done by appointment only 

and vehicles will be stored within the building. 

 The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following 

conditions: 

1. The business shall be operated in compliance with all state, federal, and local laws 

and regulations. 

9

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – October 28, 2024   Page 5 of 7 

2. The business shall obtain a Certificate of Occupancy and Auto Related Business 

permit.  

3. All business operations must be conducted indoors. Storing or parking damaged 

vehicles outdoors is prohibited. 

 Mauricio Rodriguez 4453 Preston Circle Dallas Tx., stepped forward representing the case. He 

stated his business is by appointment only and if need be, they have plenty of space to store 

vehicles inside. Raza Hussain 2100 E Main St Ste B Grand Prairie Tx., stepped forward 

representing case and available for questions.  

Motion made by Commissioner Adhikari, Seconded by Commissioner Gonzalez to close the 

public hearing and approve item five with conditions. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

6. SUP-24-09-0037 – Specific Use Permit/Site Plan – Tru by Hilton (City Council District 4). 

Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a four-story hotel featuring a pool and associated parking 

on 2.209 acres. Tract 1U, Memucan Hunt Survey, Abstract No. 757, City of Grand Prairie, 

Tarrant County, Texas, zoned Planned Development-30, within the HI 20 Corridor Overlay 

District, and generally located on the southeast corner of S Great Southwest Pkwy and W 

Bardin Rd and tentatively addressed as 4115 S Great Southwest Pkwy 

 Planner Brittany Musser presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. She 

stated the applicant seeks a Specific Use Permit and Site Plan approval to permit the 

construction of a hotel. Tru by Hilton is a Midscale, 4-story hotel with 98 rooms. The zoning of 

the site is a Planned Development (PD-30) which has a base zoning of Commercial (C). Hotels 

are allowed by an SUP in the existing zoning. 

 The applicant is requesting the following variances: 

1. Pool Size – The applicant is requesting a variance to a water surface of 3,000 sq. ft. 

requirement to allow a pool surface of 300 sq. ft.    

2. Accent Materials – The applicant is requesting a variance to the approved accent 

materials list to allow for high-pressure laminate.   

3. Glazing (Building) - The applicant is requesting a variance from 50% glazing of the 

length of all four facades to allow 31.8% glazing.   

4. Canopies (Building) – The applicant is requesting a variance from 25% canopies of 

the length of all four facades to allow 19.4% canopies. 

5. Height – The applicant is requesting a variance to the maximum height of 25 ft. to 

allow for a maximum height of 52.75 ft. 

6. Midscale/Upper-Midscale Concentration – The applicant is proposing a 

Midscale/Upper-Midscale hotel, which would be the fifth Midscale/Upper-Midscale 

hotel within one mile. The UDC limits the concentration to four. 

Staff is unable to recommend approval of this request because the proposal does not meet the 

UDC concentration requirements for hotels. However, should the Planning and Zoning 

Commission recommend approval, staff recommends the following conditions: 

10

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – October 28, 2024   Page 6 of 7 

1. The applicant shall provide detention or provide a downstream assessment study to 

prove no negative impacts by not providing detention.  

2. The proposal shall meet all Appendix F building design requirements for accent 

materials. 

Commissioner Medina asked how many hotels are within a one-mile radius. Ms. Musser stated 

seven. Karl Crawley 2201 Main St Dallas Tx., stepped forward representing case and gave a 

power point presentation. Commissioner Madden inquired of the lighting locations. Mr. 

Crawley stated all lighting will be in the back of the building. Dana Baldridge 4106 Briton Ct 

Grand Prairie Tx., stepped forward in opposition of this request. She questioned the need of 

another hotel and stated concern with noise and traffic. James Myers 2554 Slaton Dr Grand 

Prairie Tx., stepped forward in opposition of this request. He stated concern with the removal 

of existing trees and the salability of his home. Terry Foster 2546 Slaton Dr Grand Prairie Tx., 

stepped forward in opposition of this request. He stated frustration with the development 

potentially being directly behind his home. Commissioners thanked the applicant for the 

presentation and the citizens for stating their concerns.  

Motion made by Chairperson Smith, Seconded by Commissioner Chapman to close the public 

hearing and deny item six. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

7. TAM-24-09-0009 - Text Amendment - Article 8, Section 16: Tree Protection and Mitigation. 

An Ordinance of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, Amending Article 8, Section 16: Tree 

Protection and Mitigation of the Unified Development Code; Repealing all Ordinances or Parts 

of Ordinances in Conflict Herewith; Containing a Savings Clause and a Severability Clause; 

and Establishing the Effective as the Date of Passage and Approval 

 Senior Planner June Sin presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. She 

stated This request establishes how the Urban Forest Fund can be spent to plant and care for 

public trees in public spaces, parks, or other City-owned properties. The proposed changes 

also include minor amendments to clean up text without substantive changes.  

This text amendment will accomplish the following: 

1. Define “Public Tree” 

2. Allow Urban Forest Fund to be spent on  

a. Planting and Replacing of trees 

b. Installing new irrigation system and repairing existing system 

c. Funding Urban Tree Canopy Studies 

3. Add mesquite, chinaberry, and pyracantha to the unprotected tree list 

4. Clarify mitigation credit for trees in non-disturbance areas 

  The Development Review Committee (RC) recommends approval. 

Motion made by Commissioner Madden, Seconded by Commissioner Okoli to close the public 

hearing and approve item seven. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

11

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – October 28, 2024   Page 7 of 7 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Chairperson Smith moved to adjourn the meeting. The meeting adjourned at 8:04 p.m. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Cheryl Smith, Chairperson 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Michelle Madden, Secretary 

12

Item1.



Page 1 of 2 

                                                        

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/11/2024 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Brittany Musser, Planner 

TITLE: PLT-24-10-0038 - Final Plat - Constellation Rock Island (City Council 

District 1). Final Plat of Lot 1, Block 1, Constellation Rock Island 

Addition, creating one industrial lot on 16.832 acres. Multiple tracts 

out of John C. Read Survey, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, 

Texas, zoned Planned Development (PD-450), within SH 161 Corridor 

Overlay, and approximate addresses of 3514-3560 Hardrock Rd and 

4701 Hardrock Rd 

APPLICANT: Maggie Kelly, Halff 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

SUMMARY: 

Final Plat of Lot 1, Block 1, Constellation Rock Island Addition, creating one industrial lot on 16.832 

acres. Multiple tracts out of John C. Read Survey, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned 

Planned Development (PD-450) with a base zoning of Light Industrial (LI), within SH 161 Corridor 

Overlay, and approximate addresses of 3514-3560 Hardrock Rd and 4701 Hardrock Rd. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The purpose of the Final Plat is to create one industrial lot for a 288,357 sq. ft. speculative industrial 

warehouse on 16.832 acres. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Outside City Limits Outside City Limits 

South PD-4, SF-1 Mobile Home Park 

West PD-190 Industrial 

13

Item2.



Page 2 of 2 

East PD-389 Undeveloped 

HISTORY: 

 January 23, 2024: City Council approved the Planned Development (PD-450) for Multi-Family 

(MF) uses for this site (Case Number ZON-23-10-0039). 

 January 23, 2024: City Council approved the Site Plan for Constellation Rock Island for a 

speculative industrial warehouse building on 16.832 acres (Case Number STP-24-05-0022). 

PLAT FEATURES: 

The Final Plat proposes one lot to accommodate a new warehouse building. It establishes the utility 

easements necessary for the project and depicts Right-of-Way dedication along Rock Island Rd and 

Hardrock Rd.  

 

ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 

 

Density and Dimensional requirements: 

 

The lot meets the density and dimensional requirements, which are summarized in the table below. 

 
Table 2. Zoning and Land Use 

Standard Required Lot 1 Meets 

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 733,186 Yes 

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 1,272 Yes 

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 381 Yes 

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes 

VARIANCES: 

The applicant is not requesting any variances. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

14

Item2.



Planning and Development

¬«161

W Rock Island Rd

Ha
rdr

ock
 Rd

N H
wy

 16
1 S

b  

Parker Rd

N H
wy

 16
1 N

b  

No
 Of

fici
al N

am
e  

N H
wy

 16
1 S

vc 
Sb 

Rd

N H
wy

 16
1 S

vc 
Nb

 Rd

Leyfair Dr

Jelmak Av

Hig
h P

rai
rie

 Rd

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈
¦

75

CASE LOCATION MAPPLT-24-10-0038CONSTELLATIONROCK ISLAND

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 10/2/2024

0 0.13
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

15

Item2.



Exhibit B - Final Plat
Page 1 of 1

16

Item2.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/11/2024 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza 

PRESENTER: Abdul R. Ghous, AICP, Senior Planner 

TITLE: PLT-24-09-0036 - Preliminary Plat – Lakesong Phase 1. Preliminary 

Plat of Lakesong Phase 1 to develop 429 residential lots, two 

commercial lots, 22 open space lots, and one lot for an amenity center 

on 172.03 acres. The property is generally south of Seeton Road, East 

of FM 661, North of 287, and North of Kimble Road, Ellis County, 

Texas (Parcel IDs 190594, 190594 & 294666) 

APPLICANT: Mike Peterson, Graham Associates 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

SUMMARY: 

Preliminary Plat of Lakesong Phase 1 to develop 429 residential lots, two commercial lots, 22 open 

space lots, and one lot for an amenity center on 172.03 acres. The property is generally south of Seeton 

Road, East of FM 661, North of 287, and North of Kimble Road, Ellis County, Texas (Parcel IDs 

190594, 190594 & 294666). 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The purpose of the Preliminary Plat is to lay out roads, blocks, lots, and easements to facilitate the 

development of Lakesong. The Preliminary Plat serves as the basis for preparation of a Final Plat, 

which, upon approval by the City of Grand Prairie, will be recorded with the county. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

Table 1. Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Unzoned (ETJ) Undeveloped 

South 
PD-307, Agriculture, City of 

Midlothian 
Undeveloped, Single Family Residential 

West Unzoned (ETJ) Undeveloped 

17

Item3.



Page 2 of 3 

East Unzoned (ETJ) Undeveloped 

HISTORY: 

 August 1, 2023: City Council approved an ordinance amending TIRZ #3 to Extend the Term and 

Expand the Boundaries to Create and Include Area Development Zones #9, #10, and #11.  

 September 19, 2023: City Council approved Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a 

Development Agreement with HC GPM, LLC, HC Harmony Hill, LLC, and Riverside DPH, L.P 

for the Lakesong Planned Development. 

 September 19, 2023: City Council approved Resolution Consenting to the Creation of Lakesong 

Municipal Management District Number 1, an In-City Municipal Management District. 

 September 19, 2023: City Council approved Resolution Giving Consent to the Annexation of 

Land into the Lakesong Municipal Management District No. 1, an In-City Municipal 

Management District, with said Consent Being Effective Upon Annexation of the Land into the 

City of Grand Prairie 

 November 7, 2023: City Council approved a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the 

Future Land Use Map from Low Density Residential, Open Space, and 

Commercial/Retail/Office to Open Space, Mixed Use, High Density Residential, Medium 

Density Residential, and Low Density Residential on 1,201 acres (Case Number CPA-23-09-

0018).  

 February 6, 2024: City Council approved a zoning change from Agriculture to a Planned 

Development on 155 acres (Case Number ZON-23-11-0044). 

 February 12, 2024: Planning and Zoning Commission approved Preliminary Plat for Lakesong 

Phase 1 (Case Number PL-T23-11-0068).  

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION: 

Preliminary Plat of Lakesong Phase 1 to develop 429 residential lots, two commercial lots, 22 open 

space lots, and one lot for an amenity center on 172.03 acres. 155 acres are within Grand Prairie City 

limits, while 33.02 acres are within the ETJ. The amended plat removed Pod 4 and connected the 

amenity center to the Cove Pond to increase activation. Below is a summary of the proposed villages: 

 Village 1 will consist of 143 lots  

 Village 2 will consist of 107 lots  

 Village 3 will consist of 154 lots   

DEVELOPER AGREEMENT REQUIREMENTS: 

The City does not have zoning authority in the ETJ. Development is governed by the Developer 

Agreement, which includes requirements for residential subdivision design, landscape and screening, 

and architectural, dimensional, and density standards. Lakesong includes six lot types that differ in lot 

area, width, and depth. Table 2 shows the type of lots provided and acreage for each village within 

Phase 1.  

 

 

18

Item3.



Page 3 of 3 

Table 2. Summary of Lot Type for Phase 1  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

 

 

 

19

Item3.



20

Item3.



21

Item3.



22

Item3.



23

Item3.



24

Item3.



25

Item3.



26

Item3.



27

Item3.



28

Item3.



29

Item3.



30

Item3.



31

Item3.



32

Item3.



33

Item3.



34

Item3.



35

Item3.



36

Item3.



Page 1 of 4 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/11/2024 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Brittany Musser, Planner  

TITLE: STP-24-09-0038 - Site Plan - Oakdale 2 Industrial (City Council 

District 1). Site Plan for an industrial warehouse on 29.17 acres. Tracts 

1-5, 1.2, 12-13, 17-19, & 23, John Farrans Survey, Abstract No. 468, 

City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial and 

Planned Development No. 221 (PD-221), and approximately addressed 

as 468 Oakdale Road 

APPLICANT: Sara Raines   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve  

  

SUMMARY: 

Site Plan for an industrial warehouse on 29.17 acres. Tracts 1-5, 1.2, 12-13, 17-19, & 23, John Farrans 

Survey, Abstract No. 468, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial and 

Planned Development No. 221 (PD-221), and approximately addressed as 468 Oakdale Road. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The applicant intends to construct two speculative industrial warehouse buildings that will be 155, 603 

sq. ft. and 113,014 sq. ft. on 29.17 acres. City Council must approve a Site Plan for any project 

involving industrial uses. Development at this location requires City Council approval of a Site Plan 

because the property is for industrial uses.  

The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified 

Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques.  

The UDC identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments.  Criteria include density and 

dimensional standards, and landscaping and screening requirements. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

 

 

 

37

Item4.



Page 2 of 4 

Table 1. Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North PD-221 Undeveloped, Floodway/Bear Creek 

South PD-39 Industrial 

West LI Single Family Residential 

East C, LI Undeveloped  

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION: 

The applicant intends to construct two speculative industrial warehouse buildings that will be 155, 603 

sq. ft. and 113,014 sq. ft. in size. The site will be accessible from East Oakdale Road. The truck docks of 

Building A are located to the north of the building, and the trucks docks for Building B are located to the 

east of the building. The truck docks for Building A will be well screened from the roadway by the 

primary building. The trucks docks for Building B will be screened by a wing wall along East Oakdale 

Road.   

ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 

Density and Dimensional Requirements 

Development is subject to Article 6 standards in the UDC. The following table evaluates the density and 

dimensional standards of the proposed development.  The proposal meets the density and dimensional 

requirements. 

Table 2. Site Data Summary 

Standard (LI) Required Provided Meets 

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 1,270,719 Yes 

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 820 Yes 

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 461 Yes 

Front Setback (Ft)  25 25 Yes 

Side Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes 

Max. Height (Ft.) 50 47.5 Yes 

Max. Floor Area Ratio 1:1 0.21:1 Yes 

 

Landscaping Requirements 

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 of the UDC.  The following 

table summarizes the landscaping requirements.  The site meets these requirements. 

Table 3. Landscape & Screening Requirements 

Standard Required Provided Meets 

Area (Sq. Ft.) 73,616 141,112 Yes 

Trees 160 163 Yes 

Shrubs  1472 1,618 Yes 

 

Open Space Area 

The applicant is proposing 1.15 acres of open space.  The open space will consist of 1,149 linear feet of 

walking trails with 16 bench seats, 8,520 sq. ft. of garden area, and a water feature. 

 

 

 

38

Item4.



Page 3 of 4 

Tree Survey & Tree Mitigation Plan 

The applicant provided a tree survey and preservation plan as required by Article 8.  The applicant is 

removing 1,635.1 caliper inches of protected trees, which requires mitigation. The applicant is planting new 

trees and paying mitigation fees to mitigate the trees being removed. 

Table 4. Tree Mitigation 

Protected Trees Requiring Mitigation (Caliper Inches) 1,635.1 

New Trees (Caliper Inches) 486 

Preserved Desirable Trees (Caliper Inches) 0 

Mitigation Fees (Caliper Inches) 1,149.1 

Mitigation Fee to be Paid $ 229,820 

 

Parking Requirements 

The proposal meets the required total parking spaces. The following table summarizes the parking 

requirements. 

Table 5a. Required Parking – Building A  

Use Standard Required Provided 

Warehouse/Office 20 + 1 space per 5000 sq. ft. + 1 space per 

1000 sq. ft. + 3 loading spaces 

80 162 

 

Table 5b. Required Parking – Building B  

Use Standard Required Provided 

Warehouse/Office 20 + 1 space per 5000 sq. ft. + 1 space per 

1000 sq. ft. + 3 loading spaces 

61 96 

 

Exterior Building Material & Design 

Industrial buildings greater than 50,000 sq. ft. are subject to the requirements in Appendix X of the UDC. 

Appendix X requires that primary facades include at least three design elements and secondary facades 

include at least two design elements. The exterior of both buildings is 100% masonry consisting of concrete 

tilt-wall panels. Accent features on the primary facades include vertical and horizontal articulation, accent 

lighting, and a glass curtain wall. The tables below evaluate the design elements for the building.  The 

proposed building elevations meet Appendix X requirements. 

 
Table 6a. Building Design Elements – Building A 

Facade Type a. b. c. d. e. f. g. h. i. Total Elements Meets 

North Secondary x   x      2     Yes 

South Primary  x   x x    3     Yes 

West Secondary x   x      2     Yes 

East Secondary x   x      2     Yes 

 
Table 6b. Building Design Elements – Building B  

Facade Type a. b. c. d. e. f. g. h. i. Total Elements Meets 

North Secondary x   x      2     Yes 

South Primary  x   x x    3     Yes 

West Secondary x   x      2     Yes 

East Secondary x   x      2     Yes 

 

39

Item4.



Page 4 of 4 

VARIANCES: 

The following variance is requested: 

1. Retaining Wall Max Height – Variance to the maximum height to allow a retaining wall that exceeds 

eight feet. The proposed retaining wall has a height of 11 feet. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

40

Item4.



Planning and Development

N B
elt

 Lin
e R

d

E Trinity Blvd

E Oakdale Rd

Filly Ct
San

dy
 Ln

W Oakdale Rd

W Trinity Blvd

Private  Thoroughbred Ln

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈
¦

75

CASE LOCATION MAP
STP-24-09-0038
OAKDALE INDUSTRIAL II

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 9/18/2024

0 0.15
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

41

Item4.



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 3

42

Item4.



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 2 of 3

43

Item4.



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 3 of 3

44

Item4.



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 1 of 8

45

Item4.



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 2 of 8

46

Item4.



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 3 of 8

47

Item4.



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 4 of 8

48

Item4.



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 5 of 8

49

Item4.



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 6 of 8

50

Item4.



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 7 of 8

51

Item4.



Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
Page 8 of 8

52

Item4.



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 1 of 4

53

Item4.



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 2 of 4

54

Item4.



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 3 of 4

55

Item4.



Exhibit D - Building Elevations
Page 4 of 4

56

Item4.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/11/2024 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Abdul R. Ghous, AICP, Senior Planner 

TITLE: STP-24-07-0031 - Site Plan – Polo Rd Retail Center (City Council 

District 6). Site Plan for a multi-tenant retail store on 1.525 acres. Lot 

12, Block 5, Amesbury Estates Phase 2, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas 

County, Texas, zoned PD-247, and addressed as 912 W Polo Rd 

APPLICANT: Danial Rizvi, DMM Developers 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve  

  

SUMMARY: 

Site Plan for a multi-tenant retail store on 1.525 acres. Lot 12, Block 5, Amesbury Estates Phase 2, City 

of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-247, and addressed as 912 W Polo Rd. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The applicant intends to construct a 12,145 sq. ft. multi-tenant retail building. The property is zoned 

Planned Development-247 with the base zoning of General Retail One (GR-1).  

The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified 

Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques. The 

UDC identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments. Criteria include density and dimensional 

standards, landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Planned Development-247 
Overhead Power Lines, Single-Family 
Residences/Undeveloped 

South Planned Development-244 Single-Family Residences 

West Planned Development-247 Undeveloped 

East Planned Development-247 Undeveloped 

57

Item5.



Page 2 of 3 

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION: 

The applicant intends to construct a 12,145 sq. ft. multi-tenant retail building. The property is zoned 

Planned Development-247 with the base zoning of General Retail One. The access point shall be located 

on W Polo Road. The northern boundary of the property shall comprise of 6-ft. masonry fence.  

ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 

Density and Dimensional Requirements 

The property is subject to density and dimensional requirements in Article 6 of the Unified Development 

Code (UDC). The following table summarizes the General Retail One zoning district’s requirements. The 

proposal meets the density and dimensional requirements. 

Table 2. Site Data Summary 

Standard Required Proposed Compliance 

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 5,000 66,462 Yes 

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 232 Yes 

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 141 Yes 

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 >25 Yes 

Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 29 Yes 

Side Setback (Ft.) 10 >10 Yes 

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 24 Yes 

Max. Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 0.35:1 0.18:1 Yes 

 

Parking Requirements 

The property is subject to parking requirements in Article 10 of the UDC. The following table summarizes 

these requirements. The proposal meets the parking requirements. 

Table 3. Parking Summary 

Standard Required Proposed Meets 

Retail Parking (1 space per 275 Sq. Ft.) 
45 

 
49 Yes 

 

Landscape and Screening 

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 of the UDC. The table below 

summarizes these requirements. The proposal meets or exceeds the landscape and screening requirements. 

Table 4. Landscape & Screening Requirements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Standard Required Proposed Meets 

Landscape Area (Sq. Ft.) 10% 6,646 18,092 Yes 

Street Trees 6 6 Yes 

Parking Trees 5 13 Yes 

Total Site Trees 11 16 Yes 

Shrubs  50 120 Yes 

58

Item5.



Page 3 of 3 

 

Building Design 

The exterior building materials primarily include brick and stone.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

59

Item5.



Planning and Development

Pra
irie

 Ln

W Polo Rd

Robinson Rd

Morningside Dr

Coffeyville Trl

Santa Fe Trl

Hanover St

Badbury Ln

Loving Trl

For
syt

h L
n

We
sco

tt D
r

Independence Trl

Stones River Rd

Homestead Trl

Darbytown Rd

Fort Scott Trl

Ov
erl

an
d T

rl

Tim
es 

St

Ro
sed

ale
 Dr

Cac
tus

 Trl
Ma

dis
on

 Dr

Parish Ct

Jas
on

 Dr

Tra
ilw

oo
d D

r

Sharpsburg Dr

Boscombe Ct Jaime Jack Dr

Sav
age

 St
ati

on
 Dr

Ha
rm

on
y C

t

Moonbeam Ln

Crane Dr

Antietam
Dr

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈¦75

CASE LOCATION MAP
STP-24-07-0031
POLO RD RETAIL CENTER

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 8/6/2024

0 0.09
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

60

Item5.



61

Item5.



62

Item5.



63

Item5.



64

Item5.

aghous
Text Box
gpcitysecretary@gptx.org



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/11/2024 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Brittany Musser, Planner 

TITLE SUP-24-09-0043 - Specific Use Permit - Flint Academy (City Council 

District 2). Specific Use Permit for a Child Day Care Center. Lot 1R, 

Block 1, Oaks Baptist Church Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas 

County, Texas, zoned Planned Development No. 23 (PD-23), within the 

IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 801 E IH 20 

APPLICANT: Glenda Daniels 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve with conditions 

  

SUMMARY: 

Specific Use Permit for a Child Day Care Center. Lot 1R, Block 1, Oaks Baptist Church Addition, City 

of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Planned Development No. 23 (PD-23), within the IH-20 

Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 801 E IH 20. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The applicant intends to operate a Child Day Care within an existing Church building. A Specific Use 

Permit approval by City Council is required for a Child Day Care facility enrolling four or more children 

under age five and where tuition, fees, and other forms of compensation for the care of children is 

charged.  The facility shall be licensed or approved to operate as a Child Day Care center per Chapter 

13, Article V of the City of Grand Prairie’s Code of Ordinances. 

The purpose of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) process is to identify and evaluate those uses which might 

be appropriate within the zoning district and surrounding land uses. When assessing the SUP request, 

City Council can impose any necessary conditions and restrictions to mitigate impacts upon the 

surrounding area. The conditions imposed can range from hours of operations, limits on future 

expansions, and a maximum number of pupils during certain hours. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

 

65

Item6.



Page 2 of 3 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North PD-19 IH-20, Apartments 

South PD-23 Undeveloped Lot 

West PD-23 Undeveloped Lot 

East PD-23 Undeveloped Lot 

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION: 

The applicant intends to operate a Child Day Care center within an existing Church building. The 

existing site generally conforms to the Unified Development Code (UDC). The site has access from E 

IH 20. 

Article 13, Chapter V, of the City of Grand Prairie Code of Ordinances regulates Child Day Care 

facilities consistent with the local and state minimum standards. The Public Health and Environmental 

Quality Department verifies state requirements, minimum outdoor play space, and compliance with food 

and beverage services associated with the operation of a Child Day Care facility. 

The operational plan outlines the facility as a PK3-12th grade academy that includes a nursery for staff 

use only. They currently have 126 students enrolled and 29 staff members which includes teachers, 

administration, support staff and a certified daycare worker. Their hours of operations are from Monday 

through Thursday 8:30 AM to 4:30 PM. Lunch is not provided for students.  

The academy has one staff member on security detail. The building is locked at all times. Visitors must 

sign in and out, and any unknown persons must provide identification. All visitors are required to wear a 

visitor badge while on campus. Background checks and teacher certifications are not required for staff; 

however, they do check references.  

Following UDC, Article 10, Parking Standards, the minimum parking requirements for child daycare is 

calculated as one space per 10 pupils plus one space per employee. The site provides 349 spaces for the 

child day care and church facility. They meet the parking requirements as shown in the following table. 
 

Table 2. Required Parking 

Use Standard Required Provided 

Child Day Care  1 Space/10 pupils, plus 1 

per Employee 

 232.5 (with School & Church 

use) 

349 

VARIANCES: 

The applicant is not requesting any variances.  

PUBLIC NOTICE: 

Notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram and letters were provided to 12 

surrounding properties meeting the distance requirements in the Unified Development Code. As of the 

writing of this staff memo, the following letters have been received: 

In Support: None 

66

Item6.



Page 3 of 3 

In Opposition: None 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the request on with the following 

conditions: 

1. The applicant shall provide a playground that is at least 25% of the licensed childcare capacity 

area. The licensed capacity area shall have an exit from the building directly onto the 

playground area. 

2. The applicant shall provide a minimum 6 ft. fence around the playground area.  

3. The applicant shall provide hard plumbed hand sinks in all infant rooms for diaper changing. 

4. The applicant shall maintain compliance with City-adopted fire codes.  

5. The applicant shall maintain compliance with state minimum standards for licensed childcare 

centers. 

6. The applicant shall maintain compliance with the licensed childcare centers requirements 

found in Chapter 13, Article V of the City’s Code of Ordinances.  

7. The applicant shall maintain compliance with state regulations and City ordinances for food 

service operations.  

     

 

67

Item6.



Planning and Development

E Ih 20 Eb  

E Ih 20 Wb  

De
chm

an
 Dr

E Ih 20 Svc Eb Rd

E Ih 20 Svc Wb Rd

We
stc

liff
 Rd

E Bardin Rd
Sierra DrWinston St

Cooper St

Edgeview Dr

Salisbury Dr

Parkview Dr

Parkcrest Dr

Cla
yto

n S
t Laredo Dr

E Westchester Pkwy

For
est

ed
ge 

Dr

Chippew
a L

n

Carolina St

Ro
bin

 Dr

Westchase Dr

Wr
en

 Ct

We
stc

liff
 Rd

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈
¦

75

CASE LOCATION MAP
SUP-24-09-0043
FLINT ACADEMY

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 10/2/2024

0 0.08
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 2

68

Item6.



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 2

69

Item6.



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 2

70

Item6.



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 2 of 2

71

Item6.



 

2111 Roosevelt Dr.  ●   Arlington, Tx 76013   ●   www.FlintAcademy.com 

(817) 277-0620   ●   PaulaFlint@sbcglobal.net 

 

The Flint Academy 

 

 

September 23, 2024 

 

City of Grand Prairie 

Specific Use Permit 

Project Narrative 

 

Flint Academy has been in operation since 2006. We were previously located in 

Dalworthington Gardens. We are operating as a 501(c)3 non-profit corporation. We are a 

PK3-12th grade academy. We currently have 126 students and a staff of 29. We will be 

using the existing classrooms at The Oaks Baptist Church without any additions or 

modifications. 

 

Our classes are limited to 12 students with a teacher and a teaching assistant from PK3-

5th Grade; 13 students and a teacher in 6th-8th Grade; and 15 students and a teacher in 9th-

12th grade. We have a nursery of 4 that is provided to our staff only. They do not pay for 

their infants to be in the nursery, it is a perk that allows them to be with their children 

while they are working at Flint Academy. 

 

We operate Monday-Thursday from 8:30-4:30, school hours are 9:30-3:30. We start 

school the day after Labor Day each year and end school the Thursday before Memorial 

Day each year. We do not serve lunch to students; they all bring their lunch from home.  

 

We currently have 25 paid staff members and 29 total staff members: administration, 

teachers and support staff. We do not require state certification from our teachers, most of 

our staff have been with us for 5 years or longer. We do not do background checks; 

however, we check references. We do have a certified daycare worker on staff. 

 

Currently, we have a staff member that is on our security detail, John Flint. He is licensed 

to carry in the State of Texas. We also keep all doors locked during school hours and 

utilize one set of doors (at the portico) for entering and exiting the building. We have an 

administrative staff member seated at the door to monitor those who enter and exit the 

building. Everyone must sign in and out, show IDs if we do not know them, and wear a 

visitor badge while in the building. 

 

The following is our mission statement: 

 

WE WELCOME AND EDUCATE ALL CHILDREN, IN AN INCLUSIVE-MODEL 
SCHOOL. WE PROVIDE A CLASSICAL CHARLOTTE MASON EDUCATION, WITHIN 
A CHRISTIAN ENVIRONMENT, AND UTILIZE RESEARCH-BASED, SPECIALIZED 
EDUCATION TECHNIQUES FOR CHILDREN WHO ARE ADVANCED STUDENTS, 
TYPICALLY DEVELOPING STUDENTS, AND STUDENTS WITH LEARNING 
DIFFERENCES 

Exhibit C - Operational Plan
Page 1 of 2

72

Item6.



We are very different from any other school out there. Some of our differences include: 

 

4-day school week - Monday through Thursday 

Later start time - 9:30-3:30 

Small Class Sizes - 12 per class - Grammar School has a Teacher and Teacher's 

Assistance in all classrooms 

Mastery vs. Grades in Grammar School 

No homework in the Grammar School 

Reading is taught with phonics-based curriculum 

Latin as foreign language taught from 3rd grade through 12th grade - it is the foundation of 

all language 

Strong focus in Fine Arts including Music, Drama, and Visual Arts 

Classical literature and writing  

Christian studies in all classes from PK3-12th grade 

Christian curriculum for all core classes 

Barton Dyslexia Remediation program is given 1 on 1 to students with dyslexia 

Individualized education for all students so that we meet each student's learning style and 

level 

Dual Credit program with McMurray University 

College Prep and Honors classes 

All students make the team and participate on all sports teams. We currently have flag 

football, cross country, volleyball, basketball, and track. 

 

If you need any additional information about our operations, please advise. 

 

 

 

Exhibit C - Operational Plan
Page 2 of 2

73

Item6.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/11/2024 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Salvador Gonzalez Jr., Planner 

TITLE: ZON-24-08-0022 - Zoning Change – 1419 E Marshall (City Council 

District 3). Zoning Change from Commercial (C) to Single Family-Five 

(SF-5) on 0.328 acres. Lot 1, Block C, Carbaugh Addition, City of 

Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, 

and addressed as 1419 E Marshall Dr 

APPLICANT: Maria Gonzalez   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

SUMMARY: 

Zoning Change from Commercial (C) to Single Family-Five (SF-5) on 0.328 acres. Lot 1, Block C, 

Carbaugh Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, and 

addressed as 1419 E Marshall Dr. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The purpose of the request is to rezone the property to align with current land use of the property with an 

existing single family home. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Multi-Family One Apartments 

South Single Family-Five Single Family Residence 

West General Retail Commercial 

East Single Family-Five Single Family Residence  

 

 

74

Item7.



Page 2 of 3 

HISTORY: 

 September 1985: The City’s 1985 zoning map shows the subject property zoned Commercial. 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) is designed to facilitate the efficient, sustainable, and fiscally sound 

development and redevelopment of Grand Prairie.  The purpose of the FLUM is to serve as an outlook 

for the future use of land and the character of development in the community.  The FLUM, along with 

other community objectives, is used to guide land use decisions. 

The 2018 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designates this location as Low Density 

Residential. The proposed zoning is consistent with the FLUM.  

ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 

The table below summarizes the requirements for SF-5. If zoning is approved, the applicant must 

comply with the following standards. 

Table 2. Summary of Lot Requirements 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 

The existing lot is on a block that is mostly residential. There is an existing single family residential 

structure on the property, and it is unlikely this area will ever develop as commercial. The request is 

consistent with the adjacent land use and the FLUM.  

PUBLIC NOTICE: 

Notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram and letters were provided to 30 

surrounding properties meeting the distance requirements in the Unified Development Code. As of the 

writing of this staff memo, the following letters have been received: 

In Support: None 

In Opposition: None 

Standard SF-5 

Unit Density 8.7 units per acre  

Min. Living Area (Sq. Ft.) 1,600 

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 6,500 

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 60 

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 

Internal Side Yard (Ft.) 5 

Rear Setback (Ft.) 10 

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 

Lot Coverage (%) 50 

75

Item7.



Page 3 of 3 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.  

76

Item7.



Planning and Development

Se 
14t

h S
t

Av
en

ue 
B  

Av
en

ue 
A  

E Marshall Dr

Lak
ecr

est
 Dr

E Coral Way

Sheridan Dr

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈¦75

CASE LOCATION MAP
ZON-24-08-0022
1419 E MARSHALL DR

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 9/11/2024

0 0.03
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

77

Item7.



Exhibit B - Final Plat
Page 1 of 1

78

Item7.



Page 1 of 4 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATAION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/11/2024 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Abdul R. Ghous, AICP, Senior Planner 

TITLE: ZON-24-09-0026 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - Lakesong 

Development (City Council District 6). Zone Change from Agriculture 

& Planned Developed-451 to Planned Development (PD) for mixed-

use, urban residential, medium residential, estate residential, and open 

space uses on approximately 1,200 acres. The property is located 

generally south of Seeton Road, East of FM 661, North of 287, and 

North of Kimble Road, Ellis County, Texas (Parcel IDs 294666, 

294715, 297164, 303397) 

APPLICANT: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

Mike Peterson, Graham Associates 

Approve 

  

SUMMARY: 

Zone Change from Agriculture & Planned Developed-451 to Planned Development (PD) for mixed-use, 

urban residential, medium residential, estate residential, and open space uses on approximately 1,200 

acres. The property is located generally south of Seeton Road, East of FM 661, North of 287, and North 

of Kimble Road, Ellis County, Texas (Parcel IDs 294666, 294715, 297164, 303397). 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The applicant wishes to rezone the subject parcels from Agricultural (A) and Planned Development-451 

to allow mixed-use, urban residential, medium residential, estate residential, and open space uses. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

Table 1. Adjacent Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Not Zoned (ETJ) Residential & Undeveloped 

South 
Agriculture, PD-455 City of 

Midlothian 

Residential & Undeveloped 

Existing Residence 

79

Item8.



Page 2 of 4 

West Not Zoned (ETJ) Undeveloped 

East Not Zoned (ETJ) Residential & Undeveloped 

HISTORY: 

 August 1, 2023: City Council approved an ordinance amending TIRZ #3 to Extend the Term and 

Expand the Boundaries to Create and Include Area Development Zones #9, #10, and #11.  

 September 19, 2023: City Council approved Resolution Authorizing the Execution of a 

Development Agreement with HC GPM, LLC, HC Harmony Hill, LLC, and Riverside DPH, L.P 

for the Lakesong Planned Development. 

 September 19, 2023: City Council approved Resolution Consenting to the Creation of Lakesong 

Municipal Management District Number 1, an In-City Municipal Management District. 

 September 19, 2023: City Council approved Resolution Giving Consent to the Annexation of 

Land into Lakesong Municipal Management District No. 1, an In-City Municipal Management 

District, with said Consent Being Effective Upon Annexation of the Land into the City of Grand 

Prairie. 

 November 7, 2023: City Council approved a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to change the 

Future Land Use Map from Low Density Residential, Open Space, and 

Commercial/Retail/Office to Open Space, Mixed Use, High Density Residential, Medium 

Density Residential, and Low Density Residential on 1,201 acres (Case Number CPA-23-09-

0018).   

 February 6, 2024: City Council approved a zoning change from Agriculture to a Planned 

Development on 155 acres (Case Number ZON-23-11-0044).  

 February 12, 2024: Planning and Zoning Commission approved Preliminary Plat for Lakesong 

Phase 1 (Case Number PLT-23-11-0068).  

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION: 

The applicant wishes to rezone the subject parcels from Agricultural (A) and Planned Development (PD) 

to Planned Development (PD) to allow mixed-use, urban residential, medium residential, estate 

residential, and open spaces. Tract 1 includes Non-Residential and Mixed-Use Residential uses on 61 

acres. Tract 2 includes Mixed-Use Non-Residential and Mixed-Use Residential uses on 94 acres. Tract 3 

includes Estate, Low, and Medium density residential uses on 1,045 acres. 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) is designed to facilitate the efficient, sustainable, and fiscally sound 

development and redevelopment of Grand Prairie. The purpose of the FLUM is to serve as an outlook 

for the future use of land and the character of development in the community. The FLUM, along with 

other community objectives, is used to guide land use decisions. 

The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designates this location as Medium Density Residential and Mixed 

Use. Medium Density Residential represents single-family residential neighborhoods at densities 

between six (6) and 12 dwelling units per acre and is intended to serve as a transitional use between low 

density areas and higher intensity uses, such as commercial, retail, and industrial. Mixed Use 

designation is envisioned for integrated developments of retail, public, office, and entertainment with a 

80

Item8.



Page 3 of 4 

residential component appropriately blended into larger scale building that would otherwise be used to 

support those uses independently. The proposal is consistent with the FLUM designation. 

ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 

The approved Development Agreement for Lakesong shall apply to Tract 1, 2 and 3. For townhomes, 

the SF-Townhouse (SF-T) zoning district regulations shall apply. For single-family zero lot line, Single-

Family Zero Lot line (SF-Z) zoning district regulations shall apply. For single-family detached 

development, the Single Family-Six (SF-6) zoning district regulations shall apply. The density and 

dimensional requirements begin on page 13 of Exhibit C – PD Standards. 

The following table summarizes the lot count for each type of product and the acreages for each village. 

Table 2. Lot Summary 

 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE: 

Notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram and letters were provided to 23 

surrounding properties meeting the distance requirements in the Unified Development Code. As of the 

writing of this staff memo, the following letters have been received: 

81

Item8.



Page 4 of 4 

In Support: None 

In Opposition: None 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval as the proposed standards are 

consistent with the approved Developer Agreement.  

82

Item8.



83

Item8.



Exhibit A - Boundary Description 
Page 2 of 14 

Exhibit A 

Metes and Bounds Description of Planned Development (PD) 

NOTE: THE FOLLOWING PROPERTY IS ZONED AS A PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT BY THE ADOPTION OF THIS ORDINANCE ONLY TO THE EXTENT 

SUCH PROPERTY IS LOCATED IN THE CORPORATE BOUNDARIES OF THE 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE. 

TRACT 1 ETJ-1,045 ACRES 

BEING A 1,045 ACRE TRACT OF LAND, SITUATED IN THE S.A. & M.G.R.R. CO. SURVEY, 

ABSTRACT NO. 1056, D. MORGAN SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1224, J. THOMPSON SURVEY, 

ABSTRACT NO. 1086, J. JONES SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 583, JOSEPH STEWART SURVEY, 

ABSTRACT NO. 961, AND THE A. REEV ES SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 939, BEING OUT OF THE 

TRACTS OF LAND DESCRIBED BY DEED TO HC GPM LLC AS RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT 

NO. 2213805, DEED RECORDS, ELLIS COUNTY, TEXAS (D.R.E.C.T.), ALSO BEING A PORTION 

OF THE TRACTS OF LAND DESCRIBED BY DEED TO HC HARMONY HILL LLC, AS RECORDED 

IN INSTRUMENT NO.'S 2224153 AND 2224154, D.R.E.C.T., AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 

DESCRIBED BY THE METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCING at a found Aluminum Disk TX-DOT monument being a point in the existing northeast 
right-of-way line of West U.S. Highway 287 (having a variable width Right-Of-Way), also being the west 
comer of a tract ofland described by deed to Kreher Steel Co. Inc., as recorded in Volume 2244, Page 1334, 
D.R.E.C.T.;

THENCE North 30°37'22" West, a distance of 2,469.23 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING, being a set 
1/2 inch iron rod with a "Graham Assoc Inc" (GAi) cap, and being in the southeast line of a tract of land 
conveyed by deed to Dr. R. G. Alexander, DDS, MSD, and Spouse Janna Alexander, as recorded in Volume 
2600, Page 1493, D.R.E.C.T., also being in the northwest line of said HC Harmony Hill, LLC tract, 

THENCE North 59°28'48" East, continuing along the said southeast line of the Alexander tract, a distance 
of 1,227.56 feet to a set 1/2 inch iron rod with a "GAi" cap for a point; 

THENCE North 59°42'41" East, continuing along the said southeast line of the Alexander tract, a distance 
of 1353.49 feet to a set 1/2 inch iron rod with a "GAi" cap, being the east comer of said Alexander tract, 
also being the southwest comer of the northern remainder tract of land of said deed to Randol Mill Capital 
LLP; 

THENCE North 00°25'19" West, along the south line of said Randol Mill Capital LLP northern tract, a 
distance of 199.74 feet to a found 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow cap stamped "DCA INC", being the 
southeast comer of said Randol Mill Capital LLP northern tract; 
THENCE North 80°44'05" East, leaving the said south line of Randol Mill Capital LLP northern tract, and 
along the east line of said Randol Mill Capital LLP northern tract, a distance of 901.24 feet to a found 1/2 
inch iron rod with a yellow cap stamped "DCA INC", being the northeast comer of said Randol Mill Capital 
LLP northern tract; 

THENCE North 00°34'32" West, leaving the said east line of Randol Mill Capital LLP northern tract, and 

along the north line of said Randol Mill Capital LLP northern tract, a distance 1162.27 feet to a set 1/2 inch 

iron rod with a "GAi" cap, being the northwest comer of said Randol Mill Capital LLP northern tract, also 

being in the east line of said Alexander tract; 

Exhibit A - Page 1 
l 580.040\903994.3 84

Item8.



85

Item8.



86

Item8.



87

Item8.



88

Item8.



89

Item8.



90

Item8.



91

Item8.



92

Item8.



93

Item8.



94

Item8.



95

Item8.



96

Item8.



97

Item8.



98

Item8.



99

Item8.



100

Item8.



101

Item8.



102

Item8.



103

Item8.



104

Item8.



105

Item8.



106

Item8.



107

Item8.



108

Item8.



109

Item8.



110

Item8.



111

Item8.



112

Item8.



113

Item8.



114

Item8.



115

Item8.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 11/11/2024 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Abdul R. Ghous, AICP, Senior Planner 

TITLE: ZON-24-09-0025 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - Polo SFA 

Amendment (City Council District 6). PD Amendment (PD-410A) to 

allow 1,600 sq. ft. Single Family Attached units on 2.909 acres. Tract 

11.3, Thomas J. Tone Survey, Abstract No. 1460, City of Grand Prairie, 

Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-410A and approximated addresses of 

4529-4554 Harmony Ct 

APPLICANT: Ola Banwo, Banwo Incorporated 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

SUMMARY: 

PD Amendment (PD-410A) to allow 1,600 sq. ft. Single Family Attached units on 2.909 acres. Tract 

11.3, Thomas J. Tone Survey, Abstract No. 1460, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned 

PD-410A and approximated addresses of 4529-4554 Harmony Ct. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The purpose of this request is to amend the existing Planned Development District No. 410A to allow 

1,600 sq. ft. single family attached dwellings instead of the required 2,100 sq. ft.  

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North PD-174 Overhead Electrical Transmission Lines 

South Agricultural  Single Family Detached Residential 

West PD-174 Child Day Care Center 

East SH-174 Single Family Detached Residential 

 

116

Item9.



Page 2 of 2 

HISTORY: 

 July 16, 1985: City Council approved a zoning change for a Planned Development, which 

consists of Multi-Family Uses, Office/Retail/Commercial Uses and Single Family-Detached & 

Garden Home Uses (Case Number Z854LS31). While the original PD-174 allows for multi-

family uses, the properties included in the three tracts developed for single family detached 

residential uses.  The five (5) acres Tract R-1 within Tract II designation of PD-174 is the subject 

property of this request. PD-174 specifically designates five acres; Tract R-1within Tract II for 

General Retail uses. A child day care center was subsequently developed on the 1.89- acre lot on 

the hard corner in April 1999 (Case Number AS990503). The remaining 2.9-acre tract is the 

subject of this request and remains undeveloped. 

 June 18, 1996: City Council approved a zoning change amending Planned Development-174 

designating Tract C-1 within Tract II for single family detached residential uses developed at 

Single Family Five/Sixteen (SF-5/16) standards rather than multifamily uses and comply with 

City Standards Fence requirements in conformity with fences in design, materials and colors 

with existing fences along Polo Road and Morningside Drive (Case Number Z960510). 

 March 16, 2021: City Council approved a zoning change from Planned Development-174 to 

Planned Development-410 to allow single family attached residential uses (Case Number 

Z210101/CP210101). 

 March 19, 2024: City Council approved a zoning amendment from PD-410 to PD-410A to 

decrease the minimum living area from 2,600 sq. ft. to 2,100 sq. ft. (Case Number ZON-24-01-

0001).  

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION: 

The Concept Plan depicts 11, two-story single family residential attached buildings consisting of 10 

duplexes and one triplex. The applicant intends to develop these as for sale units. Three common open 

space areas are provided, with two areas located towards the entryway and another common area located 

on the north side of the development. A residential street connecting with W. Polo Road provides direct 

access to the development. The units have front-loaded, double car garages with a landscaped island 

between each unit’s driveway. 

PUBLIC NOTICE: 

Notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram and letters were provided to 36 

surrounding properties meeting the distance requirements in the Unified Development Code. As of the 

writing of this staff memo, the following letters have been received: 

In Support: None 

In Opposition: None 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

117

Item9.



Planning and Development

W Polo Rd

Robinson Rd

Morningside Dr

Crane Dr

Homestead Trl

Hanover St

Tim
es 

St

Jaime Jack Dr
For

syt
h L

n

Wescot tDr

Ma
dis

on
 Dr

Parish Ct

Jas
on

 Dr

Ro
sed

ale
 Dr

Stones River Rd

Ha
rm

on
y C

t

Ch
ase

 Ct

Ha
rpe

rs F
err

y D
r

Moonbeam Ln

Ov
erl

an
d T

rl

Gildersleeve St

I ndependenceTrl

Crane Ct

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈
¦

75

CASE LOCATION MAP
ZON-24-09-0025
HARMONY CT

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 10/2/2024

0 0.06
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

118

Item9.



119

Item9.



120

Item9.


	Top
	Item1.	PZ Approval of Minutes of the October 28, 2024, P&Z meeting
	Approval of Minutes of the October 28, 2024 meeting
	Minutes 10-28-24

	Item2.	PZ: 2024-11-11 PLT-24-10-0038 Constellation Rock Island
	2024-11-11 PZ PLT-24-10-0038 Constellation Rock Island_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Location Map
	Exhibit B - Final Plat

	Item3.	PZ: 2024-11-11 PLT-24-09-0036 Lakesong Phase 1
	2024-11-11 PZ PLT-24-09-0036 Lakesong Phase 1_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Location Map
	Exhibit B - Preliminary Plat

	Item4.	PZ: 2024-11-11 STP-24-09-0038 Oakdale 2 Industrial
	2024-11-11 PZ STP-24-09-0038 Oakdale Industrial II_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Location Map
	Exhibit B - Site Plan
	Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
	Exhibit D - Building Elevations

	Item5.	PZ: 2024-11-11 STP-24-07-0031 Polo Rd Retail Center
	2024-11-11 PZ STP-24-07-0031 912 W Polo Rd_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Location Map
	Exhibit B - Site Plan
	Exhibit C - Landscape Plan
	Exhibit D - Building Elevations

	Item6.	PZ: 2024-11-11 SUP-24-09-0043 Flint Academy
	2024-11-11 PZ SUP-24-09-0043 Flint Academy_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Boundary Description
	Exhibit B - Site Plan
	Exhibit C - Operational Plan

	Item7.	PZ: 2024-11-11 ZON-24-08-0022 1419 Marshall Dr
	2024-11-11 PZ ZON-24-08-0022 1419 E Marshall_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Location Map
	Exhibit B - Plat

	Item8.	PZ: 2024-11-11 ZON-24-09-0026 Lakesong Development
	2024-11-11 PZ ZON-24-09-0026 Lakesong_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Boundary Description
	Exhibit B - Concept Plan
	Exhibit C - Planned Development Standards

	Item9.	PZ: 2024-11-11 ZON-24-09-0025 Polo SFA Amendment
	2024-11-11 PZ ZON-24-09-0025 4531 Harmony Ct_FINAL
	Exhibit A - Location Map
	Exhibit B - Site Plan
	Exhibit C - Building Elevations

	Bottom

